



Constitution

of the Seminole Alumni Foundation, Inc.

PREAMBLE

To the end that the fraternal objectives and ideals of Sigma Pi Fraternity may be promoted and the general welfare of the chapters and members improved, this alumni club is established in the city of Tallahassee, Florida.

ARTICLE I — Name

Section 1 — The name of this voluntary association or club shall be the Seminole Alumni Foundation.

ARTICLE II — Purpose

Section 1 — The purpose of the Foundation shall be:

A. To function in accordance with the specific objectives of and in conformity with the Constitution and Bylaws of the Grand Chapter of Sigma Pi Fraternity, International;

B. To assist, stimulate and cooperate with the active undergraduate chapter of Sigma Pi Fraternity at Florida State University, and those chapters within a reasonable radius of the Foundation, in the promotion of their general welfare and activities;

C. To provide opportunities for social, business and professional contacts and relations among members of the Foundation and alumni, in general, of Sigma Pi Fraternity.

ARTICLE III — Membership

Section 1 — Every initiated member of Sigma Pi Fraternity, International who has graduated or discontinued undergraduate study at an institution where Sigma Pi has or had a chapter and is in good standing with that chapter and the Grand Chapter is eligible for membership in the Foundation.

Section 2 — Membership eligibility in the Foundation is contingent upon meeting all chapter obligations, both substantive and financial. An alumnus may not attend or participate in any Foundation events, meetings, reunions, or other activities until all obligations have been met.

ARTICLE IV — Meetings

Section 1 — Meetings shall be held at a time and place to be designated annually at the first meeting of the year, at a minimum of three times a year and at least annually to commemorate Sigma Pi's Founders' Day or Eta-Epsilon Chapter's Chartering Day.

Section 2 — Business of the Foundation may be conducted at or prior to social functions or meetings of a special nature. A quorum shall consist of at least three elected directors and any other members in attendance.

Section 3 — Emergency meetings may be called by the director/president and one other director, or any combination of three directors.

ARTICLE V — Board of Directors

Section 1 — The officers of the Foundation shall consist of a Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall consist of four elected members who are responsible for specific Foundation business. Individual directors have the working titles of president, vice president, treasurer and secretary. Additional officers, as well as committees, may be appointed by the Board of Directors.

Section 2 — All directors shall be elected to serve a two-year term or until their successors are elected.

Section 3 — The duties of directors shall be those that are customarily assigned to a president, vice president, treasurer and secretary, and in addition, such special duties as may be provided for in the bylaws.

Section 4 — In addition to the directors, additional officers or coordinators may be appointed by a majority of the Board of Directors.

Section 5 — The general management and supervision of all business and other affairs of the Foundation shall be in the charge of and the responsibility of the Board of Directors who shall have full powers unless otherwise provided in the bylaws or limited by a two-thirds vote at a Foundation meeting.

ARTICLE VI — Amendments and Bylaws

Section 1 — This constitution may be amended by two-thirds of those in attendance at a meeting for which at least two weeks advance written notice has been given.

Section 2 — Bylaws, consistent with this constitution and with the laws of the Grand Chapter of Sigma Pi Fraternity, International, may be adopted by a majority vote and likewise amended in the same manner by those in attendance at a meeting for which at least one week advance written notice has been given.